
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Scrutiny Review - Support to Carers 

 
 
THURSDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER, 2009 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Adamou (Chair), Alexander, Dodds and Wilson 

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 To receive apologies for absence 

 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  (late 

items will be considered under the agenda item which they appear.  New items will be 
dealt with at item 10 below) 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 
at which the matter is being considered must disclose to that meeting the existence 
and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or it is related to the determining of any approval, consent, 
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the code of Conduct. 
 
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 16)  
 
 To approve the minutes from the previous meetings held on: 

 
13th October 2009 
 
3rd November 2009 
 

5. MENTAL HEALTH CARERS SUPPORT ASSOCIATION  (PAGES 17 - 20)  
 
 To hear from Nick Bishop of the Mental Health Carers Support Association 

 
6. HARINGEY CARERS CENTRE  (PAGES 21 - 22)  
 
 To hear from Colleen Fiffee, Centre Director, Haringey Carers Centre. 

 
7. ASIAN CARERS SUPPORT GROUP  (PAGES 23 - 24)  
 
 To hear from Mina Patel, Manager, Asian Carers Support Group. 

 
8. BME CARERS    
 
 To hear from Faiza Rizvi, Director, BME Carers. 

 
Document to follow. 
 

9. MAPPING EXERCISE    
 
 To consider the range of services which people are aware of for Carers across the 

borough of Haringey. 
 

10. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 



 

3 

 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member 
Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Melanie Ponomarenko 
Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2933 
Fax: 020 8489  2662 
Email: 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.u
k  
 

 
17th November 2009 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C
a
re
rs
 

 P
re
s
e
n
t:
  
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
d
a
m
o
u
 (
C
h
a
ir
),
 C

o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
W
ils
o
n
, 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 N

ic
h
o
lls
, 
L
is
a
 R
e
d
fe
rn
, 
E
v
e
 F
e
a
th
e
rs
to
n
e
, 
C
o
lle
e
n
 F
if
fe
e
, 
D
e
k
h
 

B
h
a
a
l,
 N

ic
k
 B
is
h
o
p
, 
C
a
rm

e
l 
K
e
e
le
y
, 
If
e
o
m
e
 A
k
u
b
u
e
, 
B
ru
d
u
n
n
is
h
a
 M

a
n
s
o
o
r,
 R
e
g
in
a
 F
le
m
in
g
, 
T
h
e
re
s
a
 W

ils
o
n
, 
M
e
la
n
ie
 

P
o
n
o
m
a
re
n
k
o
 (
m
in
u
te
s
).
 

  A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
le
x
a
n
d
e
r,
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
D
o
d
d
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
C
. 
H
a
rr
is
, 
F
re
d
a
 W

ils
o
n
, 
R
o
b
e
rt
 E
d
m
o
n
d
s
 

  

U
rg
e
n
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
In
te
re
s
t 

N
o
n
e
 

 

C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

T
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 L
is
a
 R
e
d
fe
rn
, 
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
A
d
u
lt
s
, 
A
d
u
lt
, 
C
u
lt
u
re
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 A
d
u
lt
 C

a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 

F
e
e
d
s
 d
o
w
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 

In
v
o
lv
e
d
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
 i
n
 d
ra
ft
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

H
a
s
 f
o
u
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
: 

1
. 
C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
e
c
te
d
 a
s
 e
x
p
e
rt
 c
a
re
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

2
. 
C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

3
. 
C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
fo
rc
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
h
a
rd
s
h
ip
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

4
. 
C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 m

e
n
ta
lly
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
lly
 w
e
ll 
a
n
d
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 d
ig
n
it
y
  

•
 

In
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
 

re
v
ie
w
 b
y
 2
5
%
 b
y
 2
0
1
1
. 

 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 c
a
re
rs
 (
th
o
s
e
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
-3
4
 y
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
) 
in
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



A
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
1
 c
e
n
s
u
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 1
5
,9
6
7
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 1
2
0
1
 c
a
re
rs
 o
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 C

a
re
rs
 r
e
g
is
te
r,
 w
it
h
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E
a
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
y
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
: 

•
 

T
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
/s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 

•
 

O
ld
e
r 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
a
n
d
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 l
e
s
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 

c
a
re
rs
 

 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 1
9
 C
a
re
rs
 o
n
 w
it
h
 o
v
e
r 
½
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie
r 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
. 
 

A
ls
o
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 a
n
d
 a
t 
th
e
 p
o
in
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 i
t.
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C

a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
9
0
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
 t
o
p
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
 o
f 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
m
e
 u
p
 w
it
h
: 

1
. 
R
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 

2
. 
R
e
s
p
e
c
t 

3
. 
F
le
x
ib
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 r
e
s
p
it
e
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
).
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
rs
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 h
id
d
e
n
 c
a
re
rs
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

•
 

P
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

 P
e
rs
o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

A
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 h
a
s
 g
o
n
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

•
 

C
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
ilo
ts
 

•
 

A
 w
o
rk
-s
tr
e
a
m
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

in
g
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 g
ro
u
p
 (
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 s
e
t 
u
p
).
 

Page 2



•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
in
v
o
lv
in
g
 m

o
re
 c
a
re
rs
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 T
e
a
m
s
 

•
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 p
o
in
ts
 e
.g
. 
P
h
y
s
io
, 
G
P
s
, 
n
u
rs
e
s
 

•
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
e
.g
. 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
n
 g
o
 t
o
 A
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie
w
. 

 T
h
e
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 T
e
a
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 

w
h
e
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
rs
, 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 f
in
d
 i
t 
v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 e
v
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
. 

•
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 i
n
te
r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
  

•
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ru
s
t 
w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
. 

o
 
F
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
im

p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

a
y
 b
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 c
a
re
rs
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 v
e
ry
 g
o
o
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

a
re
rs
 C

e
n
tr
e
 h
a
s
 4
 s
ta
ff
, 
th
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 W

e
lf
a
re
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 w
o
rk
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
ls
o
 r
u
n
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
s
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
le
rt
 C
a
rd
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
a
lls
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm

 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 T
h
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w

ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
 

 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 G

ro
u
p
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 c
a
re
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e
.g
. 
o
n
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 

B
e
lie
v
e
s
 t
h
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 c
o
h
e
re
n
t 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

Page 3



 
A
s
ia
n
 C
a
re
rs
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 G

ro
u
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

in
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 i
s
 o
ft
e
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
. 
 B
o
th
 

in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
a
c
tu
a
l 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 u
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rd
s
/p
h
ra
s
e
s
 u
s
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 n
o
t 

im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 s
p
e
a
k
 E
n
g
lis
h
. 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
to
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 i
n
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 f
ro
m
 c
h
ild

re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 a
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
n
d
in
g
 S
tr
e
a
m
s
 

T
h
e
 C

a
re
rs
 G

ra
n
t 
is
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 A
re
a
 B
a
s
e
d
 G

ra
n
t.
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
a
 l
a
te
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
. 
It
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
o
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 w
a
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 b
y
 c
a
re
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
 e
v
e
n
t.
  
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
n
o
m
a
lie
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 i
n
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 

in
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re
d
 e
.g
. 
it
 i
s
 f
e
lt
 b
y
 s
o
m
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ru
s
t 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
a
re
rs
. 

 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
rs
 

E
v
e
 F
e
a
th
e
rs
to
n
e
 

 A
d
u
lt
 C

a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
).
 

 T
h
e
 E
IA
s
 a
re
 d
o
n
e
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
in
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ix
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 s
tr
a
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
a
t 
w
e
 k
n
o
w
, 

w
h
a
t 
w
e
 d
o
n
’t
 k
n
o
w
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
w
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
o
. 

Page 4



 T
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 E
IA
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
rs
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
. 
 T
h
e
 E
IA
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
m
o
n
th
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 s
h
o
rt
, 
s
h
a
rp
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie
w
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
r 
e
th
n
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
is
 h
a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 E
IA
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 p
a
p
e
rs
. 

 

S
c
o
p
in
g
 R

e
p
o
rt
 

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

ro
u
te
 m

a
p
 f
ro
m
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
o
w
 l
o
n
g
 t
h
is
 t
a
k
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
o
 d
o
e
s
 w
h
a
t 
a
t 

w
h
ic
h
 p
o
in
t.
 

•
 

N
o
t 
ju
s
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 L
A
 b
u
t 
fr
o
m
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 N
H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
ls
o
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 c
a
n
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 n
a
v
ig
a
te
 a
n
d
 g
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
rs
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 t
o
 

a
c
tu
a
lly
 g
e
t 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

C
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 c
le
a
re
r?
 

 
A
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
: 

•
 

‘T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 s
h
a
p
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’,
 a
n
d
 

•
 

‘A
s
s
e
s
s
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
a
re
rs
’.
  

Page 5



 S
c
o
p
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

 

N
e
w
 i
te
m
s
 o
f 
u
rg
e
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

 

Page 6



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 –
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C
a
re
rs
 

D
ra

ft
 M

in
u
te

s
 

3
rd

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

 P
re

s
e
n
t:

  
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
d
a
m
o
u
 (
C
h
a
ir
),
 C

o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
C
a
th
e
ri
n
e
 H
a
rr
is
, 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 N
ic
h
o
lls
, 
C
o
lle
e
n
 F
if
fe
e
, 
M
a
ry
ly
n
 D
u
n
c
a
n
, 
G
a
b
ri
e
lle
 

L
o
c
k
, 
L
iz
 M

a
rn
h
a
m
, 
F
a
iz
a
 R
iz
v
i,
 S
te
v
e
 D

a
v
ie
s
, 
P
a
u
l 
C
la
rk
e
, 
P
a
t 
D
u
ff
y
, 
 C

e
lia
 B
o
w
e
r,
 M

e
la
n
ie
 P
o
n
o
m
a
re
n
k
o
 (
m
in
u
te
s
).
 

  A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
le
x
a
n
d
e
r,
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
D
o
d
d
s
 

  

U
rg
e
n
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
In
te
re
s
t 

C
llr
 A
d
a
m
o
u
 d
e
c
la
re
d
 a
n
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
a
s
 h
e
r 
d
a
u
g
h
te
r 
is
 a
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
r.
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
C
a
th
e
ri
n
e
 H
a
rr
is
 –
 C

h
a
ir
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

 T
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

a
s
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
. 
  
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 A
d
u
lt
 C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

fe
d
 d
o
w
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
. 

 T
h
e
 C

a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 1
9
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
a
re
rs
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 A
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 F
o
ru
m
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
r 
c
a
re
rs
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

 A
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
6
,0
0
0
 u
n
p
a
id
 c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 w
h
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 £
2
4
0
 m

ill
io
n
 o
f 
c
a
re
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r.
 

 C
a
re
rs
 w
a
n
t 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
. 
 N
o
t 
ju
s
t 
re
s
p
it
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
. 

Page 7



 W
h
e
n
 c
o
n
fi
g
u
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 a
u
th
e
n
ti
c
a
lly
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 w
h
a
t 

th
e
 c
a
re
rs
 w
a
n
t.
 

 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 b
re
a
k
s
/p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
s
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

w
h
e
n
 a
 c
a
re
r 
b
re
a
k
s
 d
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
c
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
. 
 C
o
s
t 
im

p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
e
re
 c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 n
o
t 
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 b
re
a
k
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
. 

T
h
is
 p
o
in
t/
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 w
a
s
 r
e
it
e
ra
te
d
 b
y
 c
a
re
rs
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

F
e
e
lin
g
 t
h
a
t 
if
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
s
 a
re
 d
o
n
e
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 c
a
re
rs
 b
re
a
k
in
g
 d
o
w
n
. 

 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
s
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
 w
h
o
 w
o
rr
y
 w
h
a
t 
w
ill
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rs
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
if
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 t
o
 f
a
ll 
ill
 o
r 
d
ie
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
w
h
e
n
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
 

th
a
t 
is
 c
a
ri
n
g
 d
ie
s
. 

 P
e
rs

o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 f
u
lly
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 

p
e
rs
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
. 

C
a
re
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
rs
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 d
o
o
rs
. 

 G
a
p
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 a
ro
u
n
d
 r
is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 

o
 
F
e
e
ls
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
fu
l 
to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t/
n
a
m
e
d
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

M
H
T
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
. 

Page 8



•
 

C
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 b
re
a
k
s
. 

•
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 –
 n
o
t 
ju
s
t 
le
a
fl
e
ts
 b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 h
a
v
in
g
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
. 
 S
o
m
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
a
re
rs
 h
e
lp
lin
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
 f
o
c
a
l 
p
o
in
t 
o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 f
o
r 

c
a
re
rs
, 
th
is
 a
ls
o
 p
re
v
e
n
ts
 c
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 c
a
ll 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
rs
 t
ry
in
g
 t
o
 s
p
e
a
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 

p
e
rs
o
n
. 

•
 

D
a
ta
 –
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 d
a
ta
 o
n
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
 a
n
d
 g
a
y
 c
a
re
rs
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 g
a
p
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

re
lig
io
n
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 h
o
w
 m

a
n
y
 J
e
w
is
h
 c
a
re
rs
 d
o
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
?
 

o
 
E
th
n
ic
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 –
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 k
n
o
w
 e
x
a
c
tl
y
 w
h
o
 w
e
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
. 
 T
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
rm

s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 a
t 
fi
lli
n
g
 t
h
e
m
. 

 It
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 r
e
m
e
m
b
e
r 
th
e
 h
u
g
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
c
a
ri
n
g
 2
4
h
rs
 a
 d
a
y
 h
a
s
 o
n
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 l
if
e
. 
 

T
h
is
 o
ft
e
n
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 e
v
e
n
 w
h
e
n
 a
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
: 

•
 

W
h
e
n
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
r 
o
ft
e
n
 h
a
s
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
 

to
 t
ra
n
s
la
te
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 s
a
y
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ic
a
l 
s
ta
ff
. 

•
 

W
h
a
t 
h
a
p
p
e
n
s
 i
n
 a
 c
ri
s
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
?
  
In
 a
 c
ri
s
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
r’
s
 

ro
u
ti
n
e
 a
n
d
 l
if
e
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 w
h
e
n
 a
 c
a
re
r 
is
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
im

e
 o
ff
 

a
t 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
m
in
u
te
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
ri
s
is
. 

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 i
s
 c
a
re
rs
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
b
o
v
e
 o
th
e
r 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 e
.g
. 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 

 C
a
re
rs
 f
e
e
ls
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
p
h
y
s
io
th
e
ra
p
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
fe
e
lin
g
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 f
ig
h
t 
to
 g
e
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
h
y
s
io
th
e
ra
p
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 e
.g
. 
if
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 r
e
la
p
s
e
s
. 

 M
e
la
n
ie
 P
o
n
o
m
a
re
n
k
o
 t
o
 a
d
d
 t
h
is
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
.  

 

Page 9



C
a
re
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
re
a
te
d
 a
s
 e
x
p
e
rt
s
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
n
p
u
t 
in
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
o
th
e
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
.g
. 
s
iz
e
 o
f 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
h
o
tl
in
e
s
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
 B
a
rb
a
ra
 N
ic
h
o
lls
 w
ill
 l
o
o
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rw

is
e
) 
to
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

w
h
a
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 I
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
o
n
’t
 k
n
o
w
 t
h
e
n
 w
h
a
t 
h
o
p
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 f
in
d
 o
u
t?
 

 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 w
h
a
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
th
e
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
lis
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 c
a
ll 

w
h
e
n
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

 B
M
E
 C

a
re
rs
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
: 

•
 

F
e
e
ls
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 b
y
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
is
a
p
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 t
h
u
s
 f
a
r.
 

•
 

F
e
e
ls
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
it
h
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
ru
s
t 
e
.g
. 
th
e
 

s
a
m
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

•
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
id
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 e
.g
. 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
in
g
 

to
 c
a
rr
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 u
p
s
ta
ir
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 D

u
ty
 T
e
a
m
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
lle

d
 b
y
 a
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
r 
in
 

c
ri
s
is
 w

h
o
 w
a
s
 t
o
ld
 t
o
 e
it
h
e
r 
c
a
ll 
th
e
 p
o
lic
e
 o
r 
to
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 s
tr
a
ig
h
t 
to
 S
t 
A
n
n
’s
. 
 T
h
is
 m

a
y
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
 c
a
re
r 
fr
o
m
 g
e
tt
in
g
 h
e
lp
 a
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 w
a
n
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 l
o
v
e
d
 o
n
e
. 

Page 10



E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

P
a
u
l 
C
la
rk
e
 –
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 A
im

s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
. 

 T
h
e
 H

a
ri

n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 f
ro
n
t 
lin
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
th
e
m
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 w
h
a
t 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 i
n
 r
e
tu
rn
in
g
/f
in
d
in
g
 w
o
rk
. 
 

T
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
h
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 j
o
b
 b
ro
k
e
ra
g
e
 b
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 j
o
b
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 

g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
2
6
 w
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
in
ta
in
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
ta
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
: 

•
 

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

•
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

•
 

Y
o
u
th
 O

ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 

•
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

J
o
b
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 

•
 

G
P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 

•
 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
e
tc
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 e
.g
. 
b
y
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
W
e
lf
a
re
 a
n
d
 

P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 “
B
e
tt
e
r 
o
ff
 C

a
lc
u
la
to
r”
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
rs
 a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
. 

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 u
n
p
a
id
 w
o
rk
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 l
u
n
c
h
 a
n
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 u
p
 t
o
 

£
3
5
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 a
re
 p
a
id
. 
 T
h
is
 a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la
im

s
. 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
ts
: 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 1
0
7
3
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 

2
2
7
 j
o
b
 s
ta
rt
s
 

Page 11



 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 o
r 
m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
. 

 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 n
o
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
rs
 o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d
a
te
. 

 T
h
e
 C

a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
n
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 s
tr
e
a
m
. 
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 A
d
u
lt
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
a
t 
D
u
ff
y
 -
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 A
d
u
lt
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

T
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 d
o
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 d
is
ta
n
c
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 b
re
a
k
in
g
 u
p
 

c
o
u
rs
e
s
 i
n
to
 s
m
a
lle
r 
m
o
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 m

o
d
u
le
s
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
 5
0
%
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t 
to
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
0
%
 f
o
r 

re
g
is
te
re
d
 c
a
re
rs
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 f
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 e
.g
. 
E
S
O
L
. 
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 m

o
re
 f
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

 L
e
a
rn
 D
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
h
ic
h
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 s
k
ill
s
 f
o
r 
lif
e
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
d
is
ta
n
c
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 w

h
e
re
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 c
o
m
e
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
x
a
m
. 

 Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 d
a
ta
 c
a
p
tu
re
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
e
e
lin
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
re
n
’t
 c
a
p
tu
ri
n
g
 

th
e
m
. 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
s
k
e
d
 o
n
 f
o
rm

s
 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
a
re
rs
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
llo
w
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
n
’t
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
 T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 b
e
 c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 t
a
lk
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
u
n
p
a
id
 c
a
re
rs
. 

 
E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 e
.g
. 
p
a
m
p
e
r 
d
a
y
s
. 

Page 12



 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
g
iv
in
g
 c
a
re
rs
 f
re
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 

lim
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 e
.g
. 
ju
s
t 
to
 c
a
re
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
it
e
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 
e
.g
. 
m
a
n
u
a
l 

h
a
n
d
lin
g
. 
 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 f
ir
s
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 s
c
o
p
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 f
in
d
 o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 i
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 c
a
re
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
it
 t
o
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 k
n
o
w
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
o
r 
n
o
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
. 
 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 S
k
ill
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
a
p
e
rs
 n
o
te
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
fl
e
x
ib
ili
ty
. 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
t 
m
a
n
y
 p
la
tf
o
rm

s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 a
 

c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 m

a
rk
e
t.
 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
re
rs
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 P
a
t 
D
u
ff
y
 w
ill
 a
tt
e
n
d
. 

 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

S
im

o
n
 F
a
rr
o
w
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 -
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
&
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 W
h
e
n
 a
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 c
a
re
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
s
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
fr
e
e
. 

 W
h
e
n
 a
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 c
a
re
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 a
 2
5
%
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t 

d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 4
7
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 c
a
re
r 
c
a
rd
 h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
re
s
p
it
e
 i
s
 a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
r 
to
 a
tt
e
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 
  

 

Page 13



N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
6
5
 y
e
a
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 A
c
ti
v
e
 L
e
is
u
re
 c
a
rd
 a
n
y
w
a
y
 –
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 c
a
re
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 s
u
c
h
. 

 Q
u
e
ry
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
a
t 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
o
n
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 c
a
re
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
re
 

c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s
 a
 c
a
re
r 
a
re
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
lic
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 f
o
rm

s
. 
 T
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 m

o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
t.
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
w
a
y
s
 t
o
 c
a
p
tu
re
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 

d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 W
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 s
ta
rt
 p
o
in
t 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 c
a
re
rs
?
  
Is
 i
t 
a
t 
h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
?
 G

P
 

s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
?
 J
o
b
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
?
 

 U
n
ti
l 
a
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
m
-s
e
lf
 a
s
 a
 c
a
re
r 
th
e
y
 w
o
n
’t
 ‘
s
e
e
’ 
a
d
v
e
rt
s
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
tc
 a
im

e
d
 a
t 

c
a
re
rs
. 
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 g
e
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 a
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 p
o
in
t.
 

 In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
a
re
r 
g
o
e
s
 e
.g
. 
in
 w
a
it
in
g
 a
re
a
s
 a
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
. 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
–
 H

u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
te
v
e
 D
a
v
ie
s
 –
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
a
rg
e
t 
c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
. 

 4
2
%
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 w
o
rk
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 f
u
ll-
ti
m
e
 h
o
u
rs
. 

 C
a
re
rs
 a
re
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
le
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
b
e
tt
e
r 
s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
a
re
rs
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
a
re
rs
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 H

A
R
IN
E
T
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 g
e
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

Page 14



a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

 S
te
v
e
 D
a
v
ie
s
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 s
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 o
n
 p
a
y
 s
lip
s
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 2
 y
e
a
rs
 a
g
o
 w
h
ic
h
 a
im

e
d
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 B
a
rb
a
ra
 N
ic
h
o
lls
 w
ill
 l
o
o
k
 i
n
to
 f
in
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 s
u
rv
e
y
. 
  

 It
 i
s
 l
e
ft
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
to
 a
llo
w
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 f
le
x
ib
ly
 e
.g
. 
to
 

w
o
rk
 f
ro
m
 h
o
m
e
. 
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

th
e
s
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
. 
 Q

u
e
ry
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 i
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 c
e
n
tr
a
lly
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
. 
 Q

u
e
ry
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 

m
a
d
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 i
s
 k
e
p
t 
u
p
. 
 A
re
 t
h
e
re
 s
p
o
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
?
 

N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
M
E
 c
a
re
rs
 c
e
n
tr
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
fr
o
m
 a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
. 

 
C
a
re
rs
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 l
e
a
v
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 d
u
ti
e
s
 e
.g
. 
 

N
e
w
 I
te
m
s
 o
f 
U
rg
e
n
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

 
 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Mental Health Carers Support Association note to LBH Scrutiny Committee 

November 2009 

 

MHCSA 3 Oak House, St Ann’s Hospital N15 3TH. 0208 442 6186 Mhcarerssuppor@btconnect.com Page 1 

 

Introduction to Mental Health Carers Support Association (MHCSA) 

1. MHCSA was founded by a group of Haringey carers during the 1980’s and 

registered with the Charity Commission in 1996. The Association’s founders 

were a multi racial group of people.  

2. The formation of MHCSA coincides with closures of long stay psychiatric 

institutions and the introduction of Care in the Community policies. It is linked 

to carers preparing to take up more active roles in the maintenance of health 

and wellbeing in relatives previously confined to residential psychiatric 

institutions.  

3. Carers who contact MHCSA usually are relatives of people who have a 

diagnosis of serious or enduring and disabling mental illness (e.g. 

Schizophrenia, Bi Polar disorder, OCD Obsessive Compulsive Disorder) linked 

to statutory or voluntary admission to acute psychiatric unit.   

4. The Association’s founders aimed to bring people (carers) together to act 

collectively and locally; over concerns about the effectiveness of medical 

interventions and the fitness of community services; particularly to people 

from black and minority ethnic communities.  

5. MHCSA aims to ensure carers have a voice and influence decisions affecting 

their own and their relatives’ health status and social circumstances. 

6.  The Association’s purpose is to work with carers to secure best health and 

social care for mental health service users; to support recovery from illness, to 

tackle stigma and social isolation experienced by carers and mental health 

service users.  

7. MHCSA offers carers the following services; Respite breaks - usually group 

outings for 20-30 people -, Counselling - typically six free sessions-, Advocacy 

casework - addressing hospital admission and discharge, Care Programme 

Approach (CPA) care planning and Mental Health Act proceedings, state 

Benefit and Housing entitlements,  Monthly Support Group meetings, 

Information - about local services, medication, NICE Guidance, statutory 

mental health proceedings; Monthly Newsletter; Telephone Advice and 

Information. 

8. MHCSA works in partnership with mental health service users on issues of 

mutual interest; MHCSA currently is working with service users groups to deliver 

a Befriending service for service users across the borough.   

9. MHCSA has worked with service user groups on issues including outcomes of 

reorganisations of community mental health services; and bed reductions 

and wards closures in St Ann’s hospital. 

Agenda Item 5Page 17



Mental Health Carers Support Association note to LBH Scrutiny Committee 

November 2009 

 

MHCSA 3 Oak House, St Ann’s Hospital N15 3TH. 0208 442 6186 Mhcarerssuppor@btconnect.com Page 2 

 

10. MHCSA is a member of Partnership Boards for Mental Health and Carers, 

convened by Haringey Council and NHS Haringey.  MHCSA contributes to 

two Clinical Governance groups; convened by the Mental Health NHS Trust 

that review NHS Inpatient and Community mental health services. 

11.  Recently, MHCSA joined the Supporting People (SP) Providers group that is 

monitoring the provision to mental health service users of SP services 

commissioned by the Council.  

12. The multi agency and multi disciplinary environment of mental health care 

provision that carers must address is reflected in the range of commitments 

that MHCSA has. 

13. Currently MHCSA has 2 full time staff and a sessional counsellor and 

volunteers. Due to contractual and funding pressures one year ago, MHCSA 

lost a third member of staff. MHCSA has a Management Committee of twelve 

people annually elected during its AGM; the majority of whom are carers 

supporting relatives with a diagnosed mental illness. 

14. Each month MHCSA advocacy service has a caseload of between 10 and 13 

active cases in which carers are seeking to resolve problems affecting 

themselves or their relatives who may be inpatients in St Ann’s or who may be 

using or needing access to resources in the community provided by the NHS 

or Council or specialist housing agencies and Benefits agencies.  

15. The MHCSA advocacy service is accredited by the Legal Services 

Commission and is a member of Advice UK and Action for Advocacy. The 

service will correspond and negotiate with clinicians and agencies on behalf 

of carers and speak for carers during (CPA)care planning and similar 

meetings. The service will assist carers with Benefits claims and appeals. 

16. MHCSA Advocacy helps ensure carers’ voices are heard and acted upon by 

professionals; who exercise authority in decisions over medical treatments, 

personal liberty where the Mental Health Act is invoked, and who also 

influence access to important social support systems including specialist 

housing, income, and rehabilitation, education and employment activities. 

Offering practical support through advocacy means carers and service users 

are better able to explain and to negotiate the types of support they want for 

themselves. 

17. MHCSA Support Group meets each month on Tuesday evenings between 

6.30 and 8.00pm in Tynemouth Road Health Centre. Attendance ranges 

between 14 and 20 carers and includes guest speakers (NHS clinicians, 

service managers and commissioners) who are responsible for local mental 

health services. Previously, MHCSA delivered a monthly support group for 

relatives of patients in Haringey Ward (Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit) and 

Page 18



Mental Health Carers Support Association note to LBH Scrutiny Committee 

November 2009 

 

MHCSA 3 Oak House, St Ann’s Hospital N15 3TH. 0208 442 6186 Mhcarerssuppor@btconnect.com Page 3 

 

currently MHCSA supports a recently established Support group for carers of 

people who are inpatients or who are being treated by the borough’s Home 

Treatment Teams.  

18. MHCSA produces a monthly Newsletter mailed to 300 mental health carers 

living in the Borough. The Newsletter presents information about local services 

and policies that affect carers and service users. It uses poetry and humour to 

entertain readers. 

19. The majority of mental health carers find out about MHCSA through word of 

mouth; carers recommend MHCSA to one another during visits to relatives in 

St Ann’s hospital or during visits to Community services located in Canning 

Crescent and Tynemouth Road. A minority of carers are referred by 

community mental health services and primary care. Mind in Haringey and 

the Carers Centre refer carers to MHCSA.  

20. Recently, BEH Mental Health Trust invited MHCSA to contribute to staff 

Induction sessions in St Ann’s.   We hope our contribution to staff induction will 

encourage mental health staff employed by the Trust to refer carers to the 

Association. 

21. The majority of carers in contact with MHCSA are women. Due to the 

persistent nature of some mental illness, MHCSA works with some individuals 

and families continually over a period of years.  Where mental health services, 

staff and policies seem to change constantly, carers value continuity and the 

long-term perspective that MHCSA brings to their efforts to support relatives. 

22. Carers usually have made a long-term commitment to support a service user. 

Services may be reorganised and professionals may come and go but carers 

will usually remain involved. Carers’ long-term commitment needs to be 

valued as a vital resource; carers offer practical and emotional support to a 

service user often for decades and possess information that can illuminate 

the assessments and decisions made by clinicians, managers and service 

designers.  

23. All too often carers are prevented from receiving and sharing information by 

clinicians applying rules of confidentiality arbitrarily; paying no attention to 

the interdependencies that exist between service users and carers.  

24. NHS commissioners and providers in Haringey plan to comprehensively shift 

the balance of care out of relatively expensive treatment and care sites and 

into community settings.  Today, we are offered a mental health 

commissioning plan for Haringey that contains  a perfunctory reference to its 

implications for mental health carers; this  is outmoded  policy at odds with 

the  ‘New Horizons’ ethos for mental health which aspires to social inclusion 

and modernisation through service development .  

Page 19



Mental Health Carers Support Association note to LBH Scrutiny Committee 

November 2009 

 

MHCSA 3 Oak House, St Ann’s Hospital N15 3TH. 0208 442 6186 Mhcarerssuppor@btconnect.com Page 4 

 

25. The marginal treatment of carers in the current strategies for the future of 

Haringey’s mental health service continues to underestimate carers’ 

contributions to the welfare of mental health service users. 

26. Carers need training and information that responds to the role they play and 

to the efforts they make; carers need to develop expertise. Carers need 

service commissioners and providers to work better together to develop 

coherent responses to their role; through strategic commissioning, regular 

carers assessments and support plans and through services in the community 

that are adequately resourced and form part of a considered long-term 

investment in carers’ welfare. 

 

Nick Bishop 

Manager MHCSA 

16.11.2009 

Page 20



 
Haringey Carers Centre 

Colleen Fiffee 
Centre Director 

 
 

• Haringey Carers Centre is a voluntary organization with charity status.   

• The organization supports all Carers who are over the age of 18 and live 
in Haringey or look after someone who lives in Haringey.   

• Carers provide care for their relative of friend who would be unable to 
manage without their help. 

 

• Haringey Carers Centre’s Mission Statement is :  
      
“Seek to improve the quality of life of the adult Carers in Haringey Carers through 
support, information, advice consultation and working in partnership with Carers 
and providers.” 
 

• Haringey Carers Centre objectives are to  
            

1. Provide practical help, support services, advocacy information and 
training.  

2. Involve Carers in the planning, management and evaluation of the 
service. 

3. Assist Carers to have a voice in Haringey. 
4. Provide or arrange for the provision of facilities for recreation and 
other leisure    time occupation to improve the quality of life of the 
carer. 

5. Work in partnership with the carers and other service providers in 
order to achieve these aims    

 

• Haringey Carers Centre is a membership organization of carers. It is a 
registered company and registered company and registered charity and 
works independently to support carers. 

 

• We support carers regardless of race, gender, ethnicity, religious belief, 
age and sexual orientation, class, disability.     

 

• Haringey Carers Centre is a member of the Princess Royal Trust for 
Carers which is national network of carers organizations.    

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 21



 
 
  

• Service Provisions 
 

o Support groups  
o IT classes  
o Exercise    
o Events   
o Respite breaks  
o Advocacy 
o Information  
o Welfare benefits 
o Carers Assessments  
o Sign posting 
o Case work  
o News letter  

 
 

• Suggested Improvements for Carers Services: 
 
 

o A one stop shop organization  
o A directory of all carer services that are commissioned by the local 
authority. 

o Clearer guidelines surrounding respite.  
o Carers need to have peace of mind about where their loved ones 
are going to be carers for and they need to know that the 
placement that they are going to is convenient for relatives or 
friends to visit while the carer is away.   

o Clearer guidance for emergency respite.   
o Who is entitled to a carers assessment?   
o In relation to personalisation carers needs should include training. 

 
 

• Objectives of the review: 
 
The objectives of the review are clear and it is hoped that the review will have 
all of its questions answered.   

 
  
 

HCC. 
                                         

Page 22



Dekh Bhaal  

Asian Carers Support Group 

Company Limited by Guarantee Registration No. 4152070  

119 Myddleton Road 

Wood Green 

London N22 8NG 

Telephone no. 020 8365 7708 / 07984 175 238 

E-mail: dekhbhaal@yahoo.co.uk 
Office opening times: Monday and Thursday 10.30 am – 3.30 pm 

We are always happy to listen to your comments, complaints or compliments – 

so please do let us know. 
 

 
SCRUTINY REVIEW – SUPPORT TO CARERS 

 
 

• The services that we provide are:  
o information and advice, 
o interpretation,  
o intervention,  
o emotional support,  
o outings, and  
o beauty & alternative therapies. 
 

1) Linguistically appropriate care workers and culturally appropriate 
catering in residential homes and hospitals so that carers and their families 
do not have to worry about the cared for person all the time.  
 
2) There should also be free transport and/or free parking for carers 
to/from hospital.  
 
3) There should be flexibility as to how many hours are allocated in care 
packages depending on individual circumstances.  As people get older or 
the level of dementia increases, they get much slower so a 15 minute 
break is completely in adequate for their needs. 
 
As for input with reference to the objectives: there are two points we would 
like to make.  
 
1) Emergency cover: The rule at the moment is that social services need 
two weeks’ notice before they can help. This is not possible if there is an 
emergency and nobody is available to look after the cared for. 1-2 days’ 
notice should be all that is required.  
 
2) Access to health and well-being services: The Active Card (Leisure 
Card) should be usable without the cared for person being present as it is 
more of a break than if the carer had to worry about the cared for as well. 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Meeting 2

	5 Mental Health Carers Support Association
	6 Haringey Carers Centre
	7 Asian Carers Support Group

